
 1 

                                APPROVED 
TOWN OF LOUDON 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
MINUTES OF AUGUST 28, 2014 

 
Chairman Dave Powelson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

The following members were present:  Chairman Dave Powelson, Howard Pearl, Ned Lizotte, Earl 
Tuson, and alternates George Saunderson and Charlie Aznive.   

ROLL CALL 

Alternate George Saunderson was appointed as a voting member in the absence of Roy Merrill. 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
Regular Hearing – Earl Tuson moved to accept the minutes of July 24, 2014 as written; 
seconded by George Saunderson.  All were in favor.   
Boucher Site Walk

 

 – Howard Pearl made a motion to approve the minutes of July 29, 2014 as 
printed; seconded by George Saunderson.  All were in favor. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

Application #Z14-08, Sthua & Colleen Sliva

 Chairman Powelson reviewed the application and read from the cease and desist issued by 
Code Enforcement Officer Fiske.  Ms. Puckhaber asked for time to review the minutes of the site visit.  
Mr. Powelson stated that those attending the site visit saw the new roof on an existing bay, the lean-
to with a camper trailer, and an addition on the back of the garage where people were staying.  Mr. 
Sliva said they did have some homeless people there but at this time it is just a safety room for the 
business.  Charlie Aznive asked to clarify the points of the complaint, saying he listed them as 
multiple dwellings on the property, sheltering the homeless, and the garage having a common wall 
with an inhabited area.  He said he thinks that is where the Code Enforcement Officer is coming from 
due to carbon monoxide poisoning, etc.  Dave Powelson read through the specific complaints, noting 
that ‘no building permit’ is listed three times.  Mr. Sliva clarified that the bay with the lift has been 
there for several years, it just has a new trussed roof. 

 – Appeal of an Administrative Decision, RR District, Map 
12, Lot 3 on Bee Hole Road.  The applicants and their attorney, Diane Puckhaber, were present.  
There were no abutters present.  Ned Lizotte recused himself from this case; Charlie Aznive was 
appointed as a voting member.   

 Attorney Puckhaber asked what would be considered a practical solution.  She said this is a 
family letting another family stay in the camper.  Charlie Aznive said sheltering the homeless is 
honorable but leads to other issues.  Earl Tuson pointed out that the Zoning Ordinance does not 
permit two dwelling units on the same property.  Dave Powelson returned to the points of the cease & 
desist order.  There was no building permit for the roof; next, there were people in the trailer and a 
roof had been put over the trailer with no building permit.  He said the Zoning Ordinance is fairly clear 
about additional dwelling units.  He noted that the Zoning Ordinance does have provision for 
someone to stay in a camper for twenty-one days; there is no particular rule for having a camper kept 
out of the weather.   

Ms. Puckhaber said the applicants are helping someone and those people are asking the town 
for help to get into some type of housing.  Earl Tuson stated that the Zoning Ordinance is voted on by 
Loudon voters, the Board members are also voted in by those voters and the Board is responsible for 
upholding the Ordinance.  Ms. Puckhaber said the camper has been there for twenty years.  She said 
the easy solution would be to vacate the camper but that does not seem reasonable as it puts more 
burden on the Town to help the people staying there.  Mrs. Sliva said they respect the Ordinance and 
are working with the family.  She said they are working very hard to get assistance for housing so that 



 2 

issue will be resolved before long.  Charlie Aznive said again that he is guessing that carbon 
monoxide is a concern of Bob Fiske, although he is not here to confirm that.   

Howard Pearl asked to clarify the process to be followed by the Board on an Administrative 
Appeal.  Chairman Powelson said the Board has the power to hear and decide an appeal.  He read 
from page 77 of the Zoning Ordinance with regard to appeals.    Mr. Pearl said he feels no immediate 
cease and desist is necessary.  He noted that the applicants are long-time residents and there is an 
end to the living situation in sight.  Charlie Aznive said he feels the essence of Mr. Fiske’s issue was 
probably the inhabitation and safety.  The Board discussed a variety of resolutions to the points of the 
appeal.  George Saunderson made a motion that the Administrative Appeal be resolved with 
the following points:  1) Camper will be vacated within twenty-one days from this date; 2) The 
applicant will apply for a building permit for the roof over the lift bay within seven days from 
this date; 3) The applicant will apply for a building permit for the secondary roof/lean-to over 
the camper within seven days from this date; 4) The applicant will apply for a building permit 
for the safety room added at the back of the garage within seven days from this date; 5) 
Planning Board approval for the expansion of an existing business does not apply; 6) 
Habitation of safety room is not permitted; 7) Failure to do so may result in up to two hundred 
seventy-five dollars per day fine.  Howard Pearl seconded the motion.  A roll vote was taken:  
Charlie Aznive – yes; Earl Tuson – yes; Dave Powelson – yes; Howard Pearl – yes; George 
Saunderson – yes.   
 
Roy Merrill arrived shortly after the first hearing started.  George Saunderson returned to an Alternate 
position after the vote.  Charlie Aznive also returned to an Alternate position. 
 
Application #Z14-11, Leo Boucher

 Earl Tuson said he did not get to the site visit so he would like a little more information from 
those who did attend.  Chairman Powelson said there was discussion of the garage, its size and 
location.  He said the line of stakes appeared to be approximately 4 ½’ from the bound.  Howard 
Pearl noted that there was not a lot of room to move away from the road without encroaching on the 
septic too much.  Mr. Tuson asked the dimensions of the proposed garage.  Mr. Gordon said it would 
be 30’ x 40’.  He explained that Mr. Boucher was married last night; his wife is a large animal 
veterinarian and will need space for her truck when coming back to NH.  He said Mr. Boucher does 
not want the garage to overpower the house.  Dave Rice has been to look at the site and is in 
agreement with the reduced setback as long as the doors are not facing the road; that would not 
allow enough room for a car to be parked between the garage and the road.  

 – Special Exception for reduced front setback, RR District, Map 
58, Lot 62.  The applicant was unable to attend the meeting; he appointed Bill Gordon to act on his 
behalf.  There were no other abutters present.   

 Earl Tuson and Ned Lizotte stated that they did not attend the site visit so they would like the 
alternates who did attend to vote.  Charlie Aznive and George Saunderson were appointed as voting 
members for this matter.   
 The chairman went through the points of the application with the Board.  Howard Pearl made 
a motion to approve the application with a 5’ front setback from the property line; seconded 
by Roy Merrill.  A roll vote was taken:  George Saunderson – yes; Howard Pearl – yes; Roy 
Merrill – yes; Dave Powelson – yes; Charlie Aznive – yes.  Unanimous - PASSED 
    

Howard Pearl made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:53 p.m.; seconded by Roy Merrill.  All were 
in favor. 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
Submitted by, 
Donna White 
Administrative Assistant 


